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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA QL
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION
C') : 4
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ANDRE BEARD and GLORIBEL 1vil Case Num

GUERRERO, On Behalf Of Themselves

And All Others Similarly Situated,
CLASS ACTION

Plaintiffs,
COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF
VS. THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT
PACIFIC BELL TELEPHONE DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

COMPANY, a California Corporation,
d/b/a AT&T California; and DOES 1-20,
inclusive,

Defendants.
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Plaintiffs Andre Beard and Gloribel Guerrero, by and through their attorneys, bring
this action on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated against Defendants
PACIFIC BELL TELPHONE COMPANY, a California Corporation, d/b/a AT&T
California (“AT&T” or “Defendant”) and Does 1 through 20, and hereby allege as follows:
I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves and all other
similarly-situated AT&T customer service representatives and “Level 1” Managers (“Class
Members”) for AT&T’s violations of the Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”).

2. AT&T ranks its employees by total absences each month. AT&T
calculates its employees’ absences using a “total absence policy” whereby all absences,
including AT&T-designated FMLA-protected leave, are the basis for the rankings. When
AT&T determines that an employee is in the bottom 30% of its attendance records based on
its monthly total absence calculations, its policy is to “black list” the so-called “FMLA
abuser” and target the employee for termination. AT&T’s policy is therefore to consider
AT&T-designated FMLA-protected leave as a negative factor in its adverse employment
decisions.

3. Plaintiffs seek all available remedies under the FMLA for their
claims and the claims of putative class members including damages, interest, liquidated
damages, attorney fees, and costs.

II. JURISDICTION

4, This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 USC § 1331 because the
claims of Plaintiffs and the putative class arise under the Federal Family Medical Leave
Act, 29 USC § 2601, et seq.

III. VENUE

5. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 USC § 1391(b)(2)

because a substantial part of the events on which the claim is based occurred in San

Francisco County.
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IV. PARTIES

A. Plaintiffs

6. Plaintiff Andre Beard was employed by AT&T as an Account
Manager, Account Executive, and Coach Leader at AT&T’s San Jose, San Ramon, and
Sacramento branches from November 8, 1999 to April 10, 2010. Beard took AT&T-
designated FMLA -protected leave and was told that because he took the protected leave he
would be ineligible for a promotion. Beard was also placed on a “do not hire” list because
he took protected leave.

7. Plaintiff Gloribel Guerrero was employed by AT&T as a customer
service representative at AT&T’s Spanish Language Center in Oakland, California from
June 4, 2011 to May 18, 2010. Guerrero was told she would not receive a promotion
because she took AT&T-designated FMLA-protected leave and was eventually terminated
because she took AT&T-designated FMLA -protected leave.

B. Defendants

8. Defendant AT&T is a California Corporation with its principal place
of business in San Francisco, California. At all relevant times, AT&T was an employer or
joint employer of Plaintiff and all putative Class Members.

9. Plaintiffs do not know the true names and capacities of Defendants
DOES 1-20, inclusive, and for that reason sues DOES 1-20 under fictitious names and
prays leave to amend the complaint to insert the true names and capacities of DOES 1-20
when Plaintiffs ascertain said true names and capacities.

10. Plaintiffs are informed and believe that Defendants and each of them
are responsible in whole or in part for Plaintiff’s damages.

11. At all relevant times, Defendants, their employees, agents,
successors, and each of them participated in the doing of acts or authorized or ratified the
doing of the acts hereinafter alleged to have been done by the named Defendants.

1

1

_3-
COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT




HERSHANDHERSH
A Professional Corporation

© 0 1 O b W N e

RN BN Do DN DO DN DN DN = e e e e e e e el
0 2 O o W N = O Y 0NN s W=D

Case3:11-cv-03780-JSC Documentl Filed08/01/11 Page4 of 8

V.FACTUAL ALLEGATION

12 AT&T is a covered entity or employer under the FMLA.

13, AT&T has a “total absence policy” pursuant to which all absences,
including absences recognized by AT&T as FMLA-protected absences, are counted
together for purposes of calculating absences. The total absence policy took effect in July
2008.

14. AT&T ranks its non-managerial and managerial employees
according to their total absences using “Black Lists.”

15. Black Lists are color-coded lists that identify employees in the
bottom 30% of AT&T’s attendance records.

16. AT&T’s policy was to actively harass, formally reprimand,
intimidate, demote, refuse to promote, discharge, or constructively discharge all employees
who were in the bottom 30% of AT&T’s attendance records.

17.  Plaintiffs and putative Class Members took AT&T-designated and
FMLA-protected leave.

18. Plaintiffs and putative Class Members were in the bottom 30% of
AT&T’s attendance records pursuant to their total absences.

19.  Plaintiffs and putative Class Members’ use of AT&T-designated
FMLA-protected leave was therefore a negative factor in AT&T’s adverse employment
decisions including harassment, intimidation, demotion, refusal to promote, discharge, or
constructive discharge.

20.  AT&T therefore willfully interfered with Plaintiff and putative Class
Members’ FMLA rights by adopting a total absence policy and basing its adverse
employment actions upon the results of the total absence policy.

V1. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATION

21.  Plaintiff Gloribel Guerrero brings this lawsuit for violations of

FMLA on her behalf and on behalf of all other similarly situated non-managerial members

of the Proposed Class pursuant to FRCP 23.

_4-
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22.  The “Non-Managerial Sub-Class” is defined as:

All non-managerial employees employed by AT&T at call centers,
collection centers, or bilingual centers within the State of California
at any time during the period of three years prior to the date of the
commencement of this action through the final disposition of this
action who took AT&T-designated FMLA-designated leave and
who, during the Class Period, were in the bottom 30% of AT&T’s
total absence records.

23.  Plaintiff Andre Beard brings this lawsuit for violations of FMLA on
his behalf and on behalf of all other similarly situated first level managerial members of the
Proposed Class lass pursuant to FRCP 23.

24.  The “Managerial Sub-Class” is defined as:

All first level managerial employees employed by AT&T at call
centers, collection centers, or bilingual centers within the State of
California at any time during the period of three years prior to the
date of the commencement of this action through the final disposition
of this action who took AT&T-designated FMLA-designated leave
and who, during the Class Period, in the bottom 30% of AT&T’s
total absence records.

25. Excluded from the Proposed Classes are: (1) Defendants, any entity
or division in which Defendants have a controlling interest, and its/their legal
representatives, officers, directors, assigns and successors; (2) the judge to whom this case
is assigned and any member of the judge’s immediate family; (3) non-California residents;
and (5) claims for personal injury, wrongful death and emotional distress and claims of
consequential property damage and loss.

26. Both Class Periods run from three years prior to the date of the
commencement of this action through the date of final disposition of this action pursuant to
29 USC § 2617(c)(2) and 29 CFR § 825.400.

A.NUMEROSITY
27.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe that thousands of non-managerial

persons were employed by AT&T at call centers, collections centers, and bilingual centers

_5.
COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT




HERSHANDHERSH
A Professional Corporation

O & =~ O U B W N

DN DN N N N N N N DN e e e e e e e e e
oo = Y L \ R e BN e B o « BTN BN e NG ) TS S N e =)

Case3:11-cv-03780-JSC Documentl Filed08/01/11 Page6 of 8
within the State of California during the Class Period. Plaintiffs are informed and believe
that hundreds of managerial persons were employed by AT&T at call centers, collections
centers, and bilingual centers within the State of California during the Class Period.
Plaintiffs are informed and believe that the number of putative Class Members is readily
ascertainable through discovery of Defendants’ payroll and personnel records.
B. TYPICALITY

28.  Plaintiffs claim that they took AT&T-designated FMLA-protected
leave and that the fact that they took AT&T-designated FMLA-protected leave was a
negative factor in AT&T’s employment decisions towards them. Plaintiffs’ claims are
typical of the claims of all putative Class Members in both sub-classes, all of whom allege
the same FMLA violation based on the same company policies.
C. COMMONALITY

29. Class Members in both sub-classes share common issues of fact,
including:

a. All Class Members in both sub-classes took AT&T-
designated FMLA -protected leave.

b. All Class Members in both sub-classes were in the bottom
30% of AT&T’s attendance records.

c. All Class Members in both sub-classes were subject to
AT&T’s adverse employment actions because they were in the bottom 30% of AT&T’s
total absence records.

d. AT&T-designated FMLA-protected leave was a negative
factor in AT&T’s adverse employment actions against all Class Members in both sub-
classes.

30. Class Members in both sub-classes share a common issue of law,
including:

a. Whether Defendants violated the FMLA, 29 USC 2615(a)(1).

-6 -
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“ "’
D. ADEQUACY

31.  Plaintiffs are members of their respective sub-classes and will fairly
and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiffs have retained
counsel competent and experienced in complex class actions and federal labor and
employment litigation.
F. PREDOMINANCE

32. Common issues predominate over individualized issues. The Court
can determine liability on a class-wide basis in both sub-classes with common proof of
AT&T’s policy of taking adverse employment actions against all employees whose total
absences — including absences that were designated by AT&T as FMLA-protected — placed
them in the bottom 30% of AT&T’s total absence records.
G.SUPERIORITY

33. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair
and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Because of the relatively small size of the
individual Class Members’ claims, absent a class action, most Class Members would likely
find the cost of individually litigating their claims against Defendants to be prohibitive.
Current AT&T employees in that putative class may also fear retaliation for filing an
individual complaint. Class treatment also conserves the resources of the courts and the
litigants, and promotes consistency and efficiency of adjudication.

VII. FIRST CLAIM
Interference With FMLA Rights
Against All Defendants

34. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and the proposed sub-classes,
reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations in the preceding paragraphs as if fully
set forth herein.

35.  The federal Family Medical Leave Act prohibits covered employers
from interfering with, restraining, or denying an employee from exercising any right under

the FMLA. 29 USC 2615(a)(1); 29 CFR § 825.220(c¢).
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36. AT&T willfully interfered with Plaintiffs’ and putative Class
Members’ rights guaranteed by the FMLA by using AT&T-designated FMLA-protected
leave as a negative factor in its employment decisions regarding the putative Class
Members. AT&T’s total absence policy — which factored in absences that were designated
by AT&T as FMLA-protected — and corollary policy of formally reprimanding, harassing,
intimidating, demoting, refusing to promote, discharging, or constructively discharging its
employees who were in the bottom 30% of its total absence records combined to interfere
with Class Members’ right to take leave under the FMLA.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs on behalf of themselves and all putative Class
Members in both sub-classes, pray for relief as follows:
A. Certification of this action as a class action on behalf of the both proposed sub-
_classes;
B. Designation of Plaintiffs as Representatives of their respective sub-classes;
C. Designation of Plaintiffs’ counsel as Class Counsel;
D. An award of damages, interest, liquidated damages, attorneys fees, and costs to be
paid by Defendant according to proof;
E. Pre-Judgment and Post-Judgment interest, as provided by law;
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiffs hereby demand, on behalf of themselves and both proposed sub-classes, a
jury trial on all claims to which a right to jury trial exists.

DATED: July 28, 2011.

HERSH & HERSH

B

y
CHARIES . KELLY T

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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